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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of LANNER ELECTRONICS
INC. as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of
Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises are the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with
the International Financial Reporting Standards No. 10, "Consolidated Financial Statements." In addition, the
information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is included in the consolidated
financial statements. Consequently, LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. do not prepare a separate set of combined
financial statements.

Company name: LANNER ELECTRONICS INC.
Chairman: Chou I Wen

Date: March 21, 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of LANNER ELECTRONICS INC.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. ("the Company") and
its subsidiaries (“the Group™)., which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December
31,2018 and 2017, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the years then ended. and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of another auditor (please refer to Other Matter paragraph),
the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly. in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs"). International Accounting Standards ("IASs"), Interpretations developed by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (*“1FRIC™) or the former Standing Interpretations Committee
(“SIC™) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants™ and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors” Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China ("the
Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. Based on our audits
and report of another auditor, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis of our opinion.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of LANNER ELECTRONICS USA INC.. Those statements were
audited by another auditor, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for LANNER ELECTRONICS USA INC. , is based solely on the report of another auditor.
The financial statements of LANNER ELECTRONICS USA INC. reflect 12% of its consolidated total assets,
and 28% of its consolidated total revenues for both years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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The Company has prepared its parent company only financial statements as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion with other matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

|. Revenue recognition
Please refer to notes 4(m), 6(p) and 6(q) for disclosures related to revenue recognition.
Description of key audit matter:

Revenue is the key indicator used by the investors and management while evaluating the Group’s finance or
operating performance. The Group initially adopted IFRS 15, wherein the accuracy of the timing and amount
of revenue recognized have significant impact on its financial statements, for which the assumptions and
judgments of revenue measurement and recognition rely on subjective judgments of the management.
Therefore, we consider revenue recognition as one of our key audit matters.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Testing the effectiveness of the design and implementing the internal control (both manual and system
control) of sales and collecting cycle: reviewing the significant sales contracts to determine whether the
accounting treatment is reasonable: analyzing the changes in significant sales from the customers from the
most recent period and previous year, and the changes in the price and quantity of each category of product
line to determine whether if there are any significant misstatements: selecting sales transactions from a
period of time before and after the balance sheet date. and verifying with the vouchers to determine the
accuracy of the timing and amounts of revenue recognition; understanding whether if there is a significant
subsequent sales return or discount.

8]

Impairment of trade receivables
Please refer to notes 4(g). 5, and 6(c) for disclosures related to trade receivable of the financial statements.
Description of key audit matter:

The trade receivables constituted 23% of the consolidated total assets of the Group as of December 31, 2018.
Therefore, the management is required to establish a policy on its allowance for impairment in order to
evaluate the customers® financial status, as well as the political and economic environment. Therefore, we
consider the impairment of trade receivables as one of our key audit matters.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Obtaining the list of accounts receivable balance to send confirmations for selected samples; acquiring the
Group’s computation of impairment loss rate to review its appropriateness; deriving the aging analysis of
accounts receivable to verify the accuracy of aging periods by examining relevant documents of selected
receivables; reviewing whether the recognition of provision for the impairment loss is based on impairment
loss rate; and evaluating whether the recognition of impairment on accounts receivable made by the
management is reasonable.
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3. Inventory measurement
Please refer to notes 4(h), 5, and 6(e) for disclosures related to inventory measurement.
Description of key audit matter:

The electronic industry faces rapid evolving technology. Therefore, the characteristic of fierce competition
may result in large fluctuations in market demand and prices. In addition, the increasing performance of
product within time basis may result in a decline on the price of raw material, wherein the carrying value of
inventories may exceed its net realizable value. Also the measurement of inventory depends on the
evaluation of the management based on evidence from internal and external, both subjective and objective.
Therefore, we consider the inventory measurement as one of our key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Understanding the management’s accounting policy on inventory measurement to determine whether if it is
reasonable and is being implemented; reviewing the inventory aging documents and analyzing their changes;
obtaining the documents on inventory measurement and evaluating whether the basis used for net realizable
value is reasonable; selecting samples and verifying them with the vouchers to test the accuracy of the
amounts; and reviewing whether the disclosure of inventory measurement made by the management is
appropriate.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs,
IASs. IFRC. SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the supervisors) are responsible for overseeing Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

L

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction. supervision and performance of the group audit.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Po-Shu Huang and
Yung-Sheng Wang.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 21, 2019

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and
not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors” report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinesc language independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Repert Originally Issued in Chinese)

LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Sharc)

Operating revenue (notes 6{p) and 6(q))
Operating cost (notes 6(e), 6(g), 6(i}, 6(k), 6(n), 6(r) and 7)

Grass profit, net

Operating expenses (nofes 6(c), 6(g), 6(h), 6(k), 6(n), 6(r) and 7):

Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Research and development expenses

Impairment loss (impairment gain and reversal of impairment loss)

Total operating expenses

Onperating profit

Non-operating income and expenses (notes 6(j) and 6(s)):

Other income
Other gains and losses
Financial costs

Total non-operating income and expenses

Net income before tax

Less: income tax expense (note 6(1))

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified

10 profit or loss

Compenents of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements

Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to

profit or loss

Total Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income (loss), net

Tetal comprehensive income
Net inceme attributable tos

Shareholders of the parent company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Shareholders of the parent company

Non-centrolling interests

Basic earnings per share (in New Taiwan dellars) (note 6(0))

Diluted earnings per share (in New Taiwar dellars) (note 6(0))

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2018 2017
Amount Yo Amouni %o
$ 7,460,780 100 6,434,49% 100
5.,430.112 73 4.634.471 72

2.030,668 _ 27

1,800,028 _ 28

585808 8 532,721
312,512 4 291,909
578,402 8 471,443
(1.618) - - -
1475104 _ 20 __ 1302073 _20
_ 555564 _ 7 __ 497955 __ 8§
62,663 1 38835 |
(10,741} - (@1,181) (1)
(3.203) _- (3.65T) _-
48719 _ 1 (6.003) _-
604,283 8 491952 8
127.244 2 98,025 2
477039 __6 393.927 __6
34y - 850 -
341 - 850 -
(18,926) - (18,553) -
(18.926) _ - (18.553) _ -
(19.267) _ - (17.703) _-
$___ 457,772 _ 6 ___ 376224 _ G
§ 424236 5 348,628 5
52803 1 45299 1
S 477039 __ 6 393927 _ 6
S 411,044 5 332,446 5
46728 _ 1 4377 1
§_ 4571772 _ 6 376224 _ 6
s 3.92 3.27
$ 3.84 3,20
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{English Translation of Consclidated Financial $tatements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese}

LANNER ELECTRGNICS INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net income before tax 3 604,283 491,952
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit and loss:
Depreciation expense 101,548 101,613
Amortization expense . 1,51 1,502
Expected credit gain / Provision for bad debt expense (1,618) 7,354
Net loss on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (395) (619)
Interest expense 3,203 3,657
Interest income {1,711) (4,936)
Remuneration cost of employee stock options 1,463 7,187
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 42 898
Total adjustments to reconcile profit and loss 98.043 116,656
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 105,067 {54,156)
Notes receivable (53,552) 3,722
Accounts receivable {255,370) (2,484)
Other receivable 81,685 47,587
Inventories (242,240) (368,976)
Prepayments 204 (3,647)
Other current assels (12,489) (444)
Other financial assets (22) 82.606
Total changes in operating assets, net (377.017) (295.792)
Changes in operating liabilities:
Financial liabilities at {air value through profit or loss - (1,009)
Contraci liabilities 22,322 -
Notes payable - (7,060)
Accounts payable 226,396 153,747
QOther payables 55,626 {72,628)
Provisions (1,464) 7,015
Other current liabilities 37,926 51,488
Net defined benefit Hability (396) {453)
Deferred revenue (4.903) 670
Total changes in operating liabilities, net 335.507 131.770
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities, net (41.510) (164.022)
Total adjustments 56.533 (47.366)
Cash used in operating activities 660,816 444,586
Interest income received 7,71 4,967
Interest paid (2,728) (3,629)
Income taxes paid (84,414} (95.132)
Net cash provided by operating activities 581.385 350.792
Cash Mows from investing activities:
Procecds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 375 -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (91,509) (74,337)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment ] - 1,012
Increase in refundable deposits (3,722) -
Increase in other financial assets - (9,067)
Increase in other non-current assets (4,032) {6,713)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments for equipment (262.451) 2,902
Net cash used in investing activities (361.339) (86.203)
Cash {lows from financing activities:
Increase in short-term loans 243,327 113,514
Decrease in short-term loans (114,579 {42,220)
Repayments of long-term debt (1,809) (18,874)
Increase in other non-current liabilities 1,752 N5
Cash dividends paid (230,295) {313,950)
Exercise of employee share options 68,974 18,489
Change in non-controlling interests - 20.087
Net cash used in financing activitics (32.630) (222.039)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (19.701) (£5,717)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 167,715 26,833
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 788.156 761,323
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 955,871 788.156

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally lssued in Chinese)

LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history

LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. (the Company) was incorporated on October 30, 1986, under the Jaws of
the Republic of China (ROC). The Company and its subsidiaries {the Group) are mainly engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of computer peripheral equipment, computer software design and development
services, and related information processing trade business. Please refer to note 14.

(2) Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and issued on March 21,
2019,

(3) New standards, amendments and interprefations adopted:

(2) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.0.C. ("FSC") which have already been adopted.

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning, or after, January 1, 2018. The differences between the
current version and the previous version are as follows:

Effective date
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per 1ASB
Amendment to IFRS 2 "Clarifications of Classification and Measurement of January 1, 2018

Share-based Payment Transactions"

Amendments to IFRS 4 "Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 January 1, 2018
Insurance Contracts"

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" January 1, 2018
1FRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" January 1, 2018
Amendment to IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows -Disclosure Initiative" January 1, 2017

Amendment to IAS 12 "Income Taxes- Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for ~ January 1, 2017
Unrealized Losses™

Amendments to IAS 40 "Transfers of Investment Property" January 1, 2018
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle:
Amendments to [FRS 12 January 1, 2017
Amendments to IFRS 1 and Amendments to IAS 28 January 1, 2018
IFRIC 22 "Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” January 1, 2018

(Continued)
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Except for the following items, the Group believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs would not
have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The extent and impact of
signification changes are as follows:

@)

IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework in determining whether how much and when
revenue is recognized. It replaces the existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18
“ Revenue” and IAS 11 “ Construction Contracts” . The Group applies this standard
retrospectively with the cumulative effect. It need not restate those contracts, but instead,
continues to apply IAS 11, IAS 18 and the related Interpretations for comparative reporting
period. The Group recognizes the cumulative effect upon the initial application of this
Standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of its retained earnings on January 1, 2018.

The Group uses the practical expedients for completed contracts, which means it need not
restate those contracts that have been completed on January 1, 2018.

The following are the nature and impacts of the changes in accounting policies:

1) Sales of goods

For the sale of products, revenue is currently recognized when the customer accepts the
goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership transfer. Revenue is recognized at
this point provided that the revenue and costs can be measured reliably, the recovery of
the consideration is probable and there is no continuing management involvement with
the goods. Under IFRS 15, revenue will be recognized when a customer obtains control
of the goods.

2)  Impacts on financial statements

The following tables summarize the impacts of adopting IFRS 15 on the Group's
consolidated financial statements:

December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
Balances Impact of Balance Balances Impact of Balance
Impacted line items prior to the changes in upon prior to the changes in upon
on the consolidated adoption of accounting  adoption of adoption of accounting  adoeption of
balance sheet IFRS 15 policies IFRS 15 IFRS 15 policies IFRS 15
Advance sales $ 39,020 (39,020) - 16,698 (16,698) -
receipts
(recognized under
other current
liabilities)
Contract liabilities - 39.020 39,020 - 16.698 16,698
Impact on liabilities b} - - :

(ii) IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments"

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" which
contains classification and measurement of financial instruments, impairment and hedge
accounting,.

(Continued)
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group adopted the consequential amendments to JAS
1 "Presentation of Financial Statements", which requires the impairment of financial assets to
be presented in a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss and OCL Previously, the
Group's approach was to include the impairment of trade receivables in administrative
expenses. Additionally, the Group adopted the consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: "Disclosures” that are applied to the disclosures in 2018 but generally have not
been applied to comparative information.

The detail of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes in
the previous accounting policies are set out below:

1)

2)

3)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is
generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics. The standard eliminates the previous lIAS 39
categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables, as well as available-for-sale
financial assets. Under TFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a
financial asset in the scope of the standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument, as a whole, is assessed for classification. For an explanation of how
the Group classifies and measures financial assets and accounts for related gains and
losses under IFRS 9, please see note 4(g).

The adoption of TFRS 9 did not have any significant impact on the Group's accounting
policies on financial liabilities.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model in IAS 39 with the 'expected credit loss' (ECL)
model. The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortized
cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity
instruments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognized earlier than they are under IAS
39 — please see note 4(g).

Transition
The adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except as described below:

Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognized in retained earnings and
reserves as of January 1, 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 does
not generally reflect the requirements of IFRS 9, and therefore, is not comparable to
the information presented for 2018 under IFRS 9.

(Continued)
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at the date of initial application:

— The determination of the business mode! within which a financial asset is held.

— The designation and revocation of the previous designations of certain financial
assets and financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL.

— The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading
as at FVOCL

Classification of financial assets on the date of initial application of IFRS 9

The following table shows the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the
new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group's financial assets
as of January 1, 2018:

1AS 39 IFRS 9
Carrying Carrying
Measurement categories Amount Measurement categories Amount
Financial Assets
Equity instrunents Tinancial assets at cost (note 1) 300 FVYOCE 300
Trade and oiler Loans and receivables (note 2) 1,103,204 Amortized cost 1,103,204

receivables

Note 1: The Group held equity instrument investment for long-term strategic purposes,
as permitted by IFRS 9, at the date of initial application as measured at FVOCI.
Since the amounts of unrealized gain or loss were immaterial, the Group would
not make any retroactive adjustment.

Note 2: Notes and accounts receivable that were classified as leans and receivables
under IAS 39 are now classified at amortized cost.

The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets under IAS 39 to
the carrying amounts under IFRS 9 upon transition to IFRS 9 on January 1, 2018.

2017.12.31 2013,1.1 2018.1.1 2018.1.1
T1AS39% IFRS 9 Retained Other
Carrying Carrying carnings equity
Amount Reclassifications ~ Remeasurements Amount elfect effect
Fair value through profit or loss
Beginning balance of FVTPL (IAS 39) 5 104,784 - - 104,784 - -
Fair value through other comprehensive
income
Bepinning balance of available for sale 5 500 - - ) 500 - -
(including measured at cost) (TAS 39)
Amortized cost
Beginning balance of trade and other 1) 1,103,204 - - 1,103,204 -

receivables

(Continued)
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) The impact of IFRS endorsed by FSC but not yet effective

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 in accordance with Ruling No.
1070324857 issued by the FSC on July 17, 2018:

Effective date
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per IASB

IFRS 16 “Leases™ January 1, 2019
IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment features with negative compensation” January 1, 2019
Amendments to [AS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures” January 1, 2019
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019

Except for the following items, the Group believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs would not
have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The extent and impact of
signification changes are as follows: :

€y

IFRS 16“Leases”

IFRS 16 replaces the existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 "Leases", IFRIC 4
"Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease", SIC-15 "Operating Leases —
Incentives" and SIC-27 "Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease".

IFRS 16 introduces a single and an on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A
lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. In addition, the nature of
expenses related to those leases will now be changed since IFRS 16 replaces the straight-line
operating lease expense with a depreciation charge for right-of-use assets and interest expense
on lease liabilities. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-
value items. The lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard — i.e. the lessors will
continue to classify the leases as finance or operating leases.

1)  Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Group has an arrangement that was not in the legal form of a lease, for which it
concluded that the arrangement contains a lease of equipment under IFRIC 4. On
transition to IFRS 16, the Group can choose to apply either of the following:

IFRS 16 definition of a lease to all its contracts; or

a practical expedient that does not need any reassessment whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease,

(Continued)
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease
upon transition. This means that it will apply IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into before
January 1, 2019 and identified as leases in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

Transition
As a lessee, the Group can apply the standard using either of the following:
retrospective approach; or
modified retrospective approach with optional practical expedients.
The lessee applies the election consistently to all of its leases.

On January 1, 2019, the Group plans to initially apply TFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be
recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at the date of
initial application with no restatement of comparative information.

When applying the modified retrospective approach to leases previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17, the lessee can elect, on a lease-by-lease basis, whether to
apply a number of practical expedients on transition. The Group chooses to elect the
following practical expedients:

apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

adjust the right-of-use assets, based on the amount reflected in IAS 37 onerous
contract provision, immediately before the date of initial application, as an alternative
to an impairment review.

apply the exemption not to recognize the right-of-use assets and liabilities to leases
with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of initial application.

exclude the initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assets at the date of
initial application.

use hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.

So far, the most significant impact identified is that the Group will have to recognize the
new assets and liabilities for the operating leases of its offices, warehouses, and factory
facilities. The Group estimated that its right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to increase
by $80,951 thousand on January 1, 2019. No significant impact is expected for the
Group’s finance leases. Besides, the Group does not expect the adoption of IFRS 16 to
have any impact on its ability to comply with the revised maximum leverage threshold
loan covenant. Also, the Group is not required to make any adjustments for leases where
the Group is the intermediate lessor in a sub-lease.

{Continued)
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(iiy IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

In assessing whether and how an uncertain tax treatment affects the determination of taxable
profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, as well as tax rates, an entity
shall assume that a taxation authority will examine the amounts it has the right to examine and
have a full knowledge on all related information when making those examinations.

If an entity concludes that it is probable that the taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the entity shall determine the taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits, as well as tax rates consistently with the tax treatment used or planned to be
used in its income tax filings. Otherwise, an entity shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for
each uncertain tax treatment by using either the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method the entity expects to better predict the resolution of the
uncertainty. :

The Group does not expect the application of IFRIC23 to have any significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements on January 1, 2019.

The actual impacts of adopting the standards may change depending on the economic conditions and
events which may occur in the future.

The impact of IFRS issued by JASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC
As of the date, the following IFRSs that have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), but have yet to be endorsed by the FSC:
Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per JASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business™ January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between Effective date to
an Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture” be determined

by 1ASB

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2021
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material” January 1, 2020

The Group assessed that the above IFRSs may not be relevant to the Group.

(4) Summary of significant accounting policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter referred to as “the
Regulations” ) and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed by the Financial Supervisory
Commission, R.O.C..

(Continued)
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) Basis of preparation

(i)

(i)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except-for
those otherwise explained in the accounting policies in the notes.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each individual consolidated entity is determined based on the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The Group's consolidated
financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is Company's functional
currency. The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to the Group's
functional currency at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated to the Group's functional currency at the average rate. Foreign
currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income. All financial information
presented in New Taiwan dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(c) Basis of consolidation

M

(ii)

Principles of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Losses applicable to the
non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if
doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions.

List of subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements

List of subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements

Percentage of

ownership
December December
Name of investor Name of subsidiary Scope of business 31, 2018 31,2017 Note
The Company LANNER ELECTRONICS USA, INC, Trading of computer  100.00 %  100.00 %
. (LANNER (USA)) peripheral products
The Company LANNER ELECTRONICS Investing 100.00 %  100.00 %
(MAURITIUS) INC. (LANNER
(MAURITIUS))
The Company LEI TECHNOLOGY CANADA INC.  Trading of computer  100.00 %  100.00 %
(LED peripheral products
LANNER LANCOM HOLDING CO., LTD. Investing 100,00 % 100.00 %

(MAURITIUS)  (LANCOM)

(Continued)
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Percentage of

ownership
December December
Name of investor Name of subsidiary Scope of business 31, 2018 31,2017  Note
LANCOM Beijing L&S Lancom Platform Tech.  Trading of computer 80.00 % 80.00 % Note 1
Co., Lid. {L&S) peripheral products
LANCOM Lanner Technology (Dongguan) Co.,  Manufacture and 100.00 %  100.00 % Note 2
Ltd. (Lanner Technology) trading of computer
peripheral products
L&S Beijing LSZC Investment Co., Ltd. Investing 100.00 % 100.00 %
(LSZC)
Beijing LSZC Dongguan Lihua Haiwell Tech. Co., Manufacture and 100.00 %  100.00 %
Investment Co.,  Lid. (Haiwell) trading of computer
Ltd. peripheral products
Beijing LSZC Beijing HDZX Technology Co., Ltd.  Trading of computer 39.90 % 39.50 % Notes
Investment Co., (HDZX) peripheral products 3 and
Ltd. 4

Note 1: In June 2017, Beijing L&S Lancom Platform Tech. Co., Lid. had a capital increase in cash of CNY 3,000
thousand, However, the Group did not acquire these new common shares proportionally, resulting in the
Group's shares to decrease.

Note 2: In March 2017, the Board of Directors approved a resolution to acquire 100% ownership of Lanner
Technology (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. at price of USD250 thousand.

Note 3: In July 2017, Beijing LSZC investment Co.. Lid had a capital increase in cash of CNY 1,438 thousand.
However, the Group did not acquire these new common shares proportionally, resulting in the Group's
shares to decrease.

Note 4: Lanner holds less than 50% of the ownership of Beijing LSZC Investmeni Co., Ltd. However, considering
the proportion of the remaining shares held by the management of the Group, the Group still holds control
over Beijing LSZC Investment Co., Ltd. and its operation. As such, Beijing HDZX Technotogy Co., Lid. is
considered 1o be a subsidiary of the Group.

(d) Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that
date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between the amortized
cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year adjusted for the effective interest and
payments during the year, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate
at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on historical cost are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of translation.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in profit or loss, except for the
available-for-sale financial assets which are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planed nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign currency gains and losses arising from such items
are considered to form part of a net investment in the foreign operation and are recognized in other
comprehensive income, and presented in the translation reserve in equity.

(Continued)
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

(i) Tt is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;
(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The asset is cash or a cash equivalent (as defined in IAS 7) unless the asset is restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:

(i) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect ifs
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprised cash, cash in banks and short term investments with high
liquidity that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value.

The time deposits with maturity of one year or less from the acquisition date are listed in cash and
cash equivalents because they are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
instead of investment or other purposes. They are also readily convertible to fixed amount of cash,
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets (applicable commencing January 1, 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: measured at amortized cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).

(Continued)
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The Group shall reclassify all affected financial assets only when it changes its business model
for managing its financial assets.

1)

2)

3)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it 1s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

-its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset measured at amortized cost is initially recognized at fair value, plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. These assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, and impairment
loss, are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in
profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI )

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

A financial asset measured at FVOCI is initially recognized at fair value, plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses, and impairment losses, deriving from debt investments are recognized
in profit or loss, whereas dividends deriving from equity investments are recognized as
income in profit or loss, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses of financial assets measured at FVOCI
are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OC] of equity
investments are reclassified to profit or loss. However, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI of debt investments are reclassified to retain earnings instead of profit or loss.

Dividend income derived from equity investments is recognized on the date that the
Group’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is
normally the exdividend date.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets and accounts receivable
(except for those presented as accounts receivable but measured at FVTPL). On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset, which meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

(Continued)
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Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value at initial recognition.
Attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent
changes that are measured at fair value, which take into account any dividend and
interest income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts
receivable, other receivables, and guarantee deposits paid and other financial assets).

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss
(ECL), except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from ail possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking
information.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
‘ credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

(Continued)
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Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
recognized in other comprehensive income instead of reducing the carrying amount of
the asset. The Group recognizes the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) in
profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full} to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire, or when the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

Financial assets (policy applicable before January 1, 2018)

The Group classifies financial assets as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale financial assets, and loans to other parties and receivables.

)

2)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if it is acquired principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the short term. This type of financial asset is measured at
fair value at initial recognition. Attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or
loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, and changes therein, which take into account any dividend and interest income, are
recognized in profit or loss, and are included in non-operating income and expense.
Based on previous experiences, the Group uses trade-date accounting upon acquiring or
disposing financial assets.

Available-for sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus, any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair
value, and changes therein, other than impairment losses, interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, dividend income, and foreign currency differences on
available-for-sale debt instruments, are recognized in other comprehensive income and
presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, the
gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss, and is included in non-
operating income and expense.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, are measured at amortized
cost, and are included in financial assets measured at cost.

(Continued)
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Receivables

Receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Receivables comprise trade receivables, other receivables, and other
financial assets-noncurrent. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus, any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less, any impairment
losses other than insignificant interest on short-term receivables.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be estimated reliably.

The objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency
by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would
not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse
changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers, economic conditions that correlate
with defaults, or the disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an
investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below
its cost is accounted for as objective evidence of impairment.

All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. Receivables
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together assets with similar risk characteristics. In assessing collective impairment, the
Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries, and
the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgment as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or
lesser than those suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss is not reversible in subsequent periods.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset is deducted from the carrying amount,
except for trade receivables, for which an impairment loss is reflected in an allowance
account against the receivables. When it is determined a receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off from the allowance account. Any subsequent recovery of receivable written
off is recorded in the allowance account. Changes in the amount of the allowance
account are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognized by reclassifying
the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss.

(Continued)
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Impairment losses recognized on an available-for-sale equity security are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired
available-for-sale equity security is recognized in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in other equity.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security
increases and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized, then the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of
the reversal recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses and recoveries are recognized in profit or loss. Recovery and loss on
doubtful debts of account receivables is included in operating expense, others are
included in non-operating income and expense.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes financial assets when the contractual rights of the cash inflow
from the asset are terminated, or when the group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

(iii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments ~

1)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt or equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement.

Equity instruments refer to surplus equities of the assets after the deduction of all the
debts for any contracts. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the amount of
consideration received, less, the direct cost of issuing.

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise those that can be
converted to share capital at the option of the holder when the number of shares to be
issued is fixed.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognized initially at the
fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is recognized initially at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition.

Interest, gains or losses related to financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss, and
recorded under non-operating income and expenses.

(Continued)
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Upon conversion, the financial liability shall be reclassified as equity, and no gain or loss
will be recognized.

2) Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, plus, any
directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured
at fair value, and changes therein, other than impairment losses, interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, dividend expense, and foreign currency
differences on available-for-sale debt instruments, are recognized in other comprehensive
expense and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is
derecognized, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss, and
is included in non-operating income and expense.

3)  Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities not classified as held-for-trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, which comprise loans and borrowings, and trade and other
payables, are measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost at the
time of initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at
amortized cost calculated using the effective interest method. Interest expense not
capitalized as capital cost is recognized in profit or loss, and is included in non-operating
income and expense.

4)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligation expires or
has been discharged or cancelled. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability removed and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss, and is included in non-
operating income and expense.

5)  Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

The Group presents financial assets and liabilities on a net basis when the Group has the
legally enforceable rights to offset and intends to settle such financial assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (applicable from January 1, 2018)

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate
exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Any attributable transaction costs
thereof are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss and
are included in the line item of non-operating income and expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income. When a derivative is designated as, and effective for, a hedging
instrument, its timing of recognition in profit or loss is determined based on the nature of the
hedging relationship. When the fair value of a derivative instrument is positive, it is classified
as a financial asset, whereas when the fair value is negative, it is classified as a financial
liability.

(Continued)
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Inventories

The cost of inventories consists of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion, and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of inventories includes
an appropriate share of fixed production overhead based on normal capacity and allocated variable
production overhead based on actual output. However, unallocated fixed production overhead
arising from lower or idle capacity is recognized in cost of goods sold during the period. If actual
capacity is higher than normal capacity, fixed production overhead should be allocated based on
actual capacity. The method of valuing inventories is the weighted-average method.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses at the end of the period. When the cost of inventories is higher than the net
realizable value, inventories are written down to net realizable value, and the write-down amount is
charged to current year's cost of goods sold. If net realizable value increases in the future, the cost of
inventories is reversed within the original write-down amount, and such reversal is treated as a
reduction of cost of goods sold.

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost , less, accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributed to the
acquisition of the asset, and any borrowing cost that is eligible for capitalization.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately, unless the useful life and the
depreciation method of a significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment are the
same as the useful life and depreciation method of another significant part of that same item.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment
shall be determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the item, and it shall be recognized as non-operating income and expense.

(ii) Subsequent cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group. The carrying amount of those
parts that are replaced is derecognized. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.

(ili) Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual amount, and it
shall be allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. Items of property, plant and
equipment with the same useful life may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge.
The remainder of the items may be depreciated separately. The depreciation charge for each
period shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.

(Continued)
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The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20~50 years
Machinery equipment 3~10 years
Other equipment 2.5~24 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. If
expectations differ from the previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arises from business combinations in which the acquisition method is adopted, and is
recorded at cost, less, accumulated impairment losses.

(i) Customer relations

The customer relations due from acquisition is assessed to amortize using a direct method of 3-
year basis. The face value of the customer relations is measured by deducting the accumulated
amortization or impairment from the cost.

Impairment-- non-financial assets

With regard to non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred tax assets), the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
has occurred, and estimates the recoverable amount for assets with an indication of impairment. If it
is not possible to determine the recoverable amount for the individual asset, then the Group will have
to determine the recoverable amount for the asset's cash-generating unit.

Notwithstanding whether indicators exist, recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives or those not yet in use is required to be tested at least annually. Impairment
loss is recognized if the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount.

The recoverable amount for an individual asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell or its value in use. If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced to its recoverable amount.
That reduction is an impairment loss. An impairment loss shall be recognized immediately in profit
or loss.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognized in prior periods for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity shall estimate the recoverable amount of
that asset. Impairment loss is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount, increasing the individual asset's or cash-generating unit's
carrying amount to its estimated recoverable amount. The reversal of an impairment loss of an
individual asset or cash-generating unit cannot exceed the carrying amount of the individual asset or
cash-generating unit, less any depreciation or amortization, had it not recognized an impairment loss.

(Continuved)
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A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold. The
provision is based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

Revenue from contracts with customers

()

Revenue from contracts with customers (applicable from January 1, 2018)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group recognizes revenue when
it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a
customer. The accounting policies for the Group’s main types of revenue are explained below,

i)

Sale of goods

The Group manufactures and sells industrial personal computers and network
communication apparatus to computer manufacturers. The Group recognizes revenue
when control of the products has been transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’ s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the
specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The Group’s obligation to provide a refund for faulty electronic components under the
standard warranty terms is recognized as a provision for warranty; please refer to note

63).

The Group provides equipment certain customers who buy product with an extended
warranty over the two-year period in addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications. This kind of contract contains two performance
obligations, and therefore, the transaction price is allocated to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The management estimates the
stand-alone selling prices at contract inception based on the observable prices at which
the Group would sell the product and the extended warranty, separately, in similar
circumstances and to similar customers. The Group recognizes revenue for the service-
type warranty on a straight-line basis over the extended warranty period. The payment
terms of the extended warranty are similar to those of the products.

(Continued})



(i)

28

LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

ii}  Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer
of the promised goods or services to the customer and the payment made by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

Revenue (policy applicable before January 1, 2018)

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts, and volume rebates.
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed
sales agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible
return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continving management involvement with
the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts
will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is recognized as a
reduction of revenue as the sales are recognized. Revenue is deferred and and realized at
execution if it can be distinguished by after-sale services; relative cost is recognized at
execution as well.

The timing of the transfers of risks and rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the
sales agreement. For export transactions, transfer occurs upon loading the goods onto the
relevant carrier at the port; however, for sales in the domestic market, transfer usually occurs
when the product is received at the customer’s warehouse.

(n) Employee benefits

@)

(i)

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by
employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan
assets are deducted. The discount rate is the vyield at the reporting date of government bonds
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group's obligations and that are
denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

(Continued)
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The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognized asset is limited
to the total of the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirements that apply to any plan in the Group. An economic benefit is available to the
Group if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

If the benefits of a plan are improved, the pension cost incurred from the portion of the
increased benefit relating to past service by employees, is recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset), which comprise (1) actuarial gains
and losses, (2) the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and (3) the effect of the asset
ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income. The Group can reclassify the amounts recognized in other comprehensive income to
retained earnings.

(iii) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or
profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Share-based payment

The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognized as
employee expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards whose related service and non-market performance conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number
of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-
based payment is measured to reflect such conditions, and there is no true-up for differences
between expected and actual outcomes.

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation rights, which are
settled in cash, is recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities over the
period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is re-measured
at each reporting date and settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are
recognized as personnel expenses in profit or loss.

(Continued)



(p)

30

LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Income tax

Income tax expenses include both current taxes and deferred income taxes. Except for expenses
related to business combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all
current and deferred income taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes include tax payables and tax deduction receivables on taxable gains (losses) for the
year calculated using the statutory tax rate on the reporting date or the actual legislative tax rate, as
well as tax adjustments related to prior years.

Deferred income taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred income taxes
shall not be recognized for the below exceptions:

(i) Assets and liabilities that are initially recognized but are not related to the business
combination and have no effect on net income or taxable gains (losses) during the transaction.

(i) Temporary differences arising from equity investments in subsidiaries or joint ventures where
there is a high probability that such temporary differences will not reverse.

(ii) Initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities may be offset against each other if the following criteria
are met:

(i)  The entity has the legal right to seftle tax assets and liabilities on a net basis; and
(i) The taxing of deferred income tax assets and liabilities fulfill one of the below scenarios:
1)  levied by the same taxing authority; or

2) levied by different taxing authorities, but where each such authority intends to settle tax
assets and liabilities (where such amounts are significant) on a net basis every year of the
period of expected asset realization or debt liquidation, or where the timing of asset
realization and debt liquidation is matched.

A deferred income tax asset should be recognized for the carry-forward of unused tax losses, unused
tax credits, and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible
temporary differences shall also be re-evaluated every year on the financial reporting date, adjusted
based on the probability that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
losses, unused tax credits, and deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
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(q) Business combination

The Group uses the acquisition method for its business combination. Goodwill is measured as an
aggregation of the consideration transferred (which generally is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date) and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, including non-
controlling interests that belong to the acquiree, net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the residual balance is negative, the Group
shall re-assess whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
and recognize a gain on the bargain purchase thereafter.

All the transaction costs incurred for the business combination are recognized immediately as the
Group's expenses when incurred, except for the issuance of debt or equity instruments.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
(referred to as reporting date) in which the combination oceurs, the Group shall report in its financial
statements the provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. During the
measurement period, the Group shall retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts recognized at
the acquisition date, or recognize the additional assets or liabilities to reflect the new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. The measurement
period shall not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests which entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured by the Group
using either the fair value on acquisition date or the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognized amounts of the acquire’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is based
on every transaction. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured (1) at fair value on the
acquisition date or (2)by using other basis in accordance with the IFRSs endorsed by FSC.

Earnings per share

The Group discloses the Company's basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, divided by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The weighted-average number of common shares outstanding is adjusted retroactively for the
increase in common shares outstanding from stock issuance arising from the capitalization of
retained earnings, or additional paid-in capital.

When computing diluted earnings per share with regards to employee bonuses in the form of stock,
the closing price at the balance sheet date is used as the basis of computation in the number of shares
to be issued. When computing diluted earnings per share prior to the following year's Board of
Directors the effect of dilution from these potential stocks is taken into consideration.
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(s) Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group). Operating results of tlie operating segment are regularly reviewed
by the Group's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and assess its performance. Each operating segment consists of standalone financial
information.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Regulations and the IFRSs
endorsed by the FSC requires management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the
application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Management will continually review the estimates and basic assumptions. Changes in accounting
estimates will be recognized in the period of change and the future period of their impact.

There are no critical judgments in applying the accounting policies that have significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year is as follows:

(a) Impairment assessment of account receivable

Assessing impairment loss of account receivables takes company arrears record, receivable aging
analysis and receiving to the customers in to consideration, and measured by the difference between
the carrying amount of the assets and the present value of the recoverable amount. Please refer to
note 6(c) for the recognition of impairment loss.

(b) Inventory measurement

Since inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Group evaluated the
net realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of the
reporting period and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. Please refer to
note 6(e) for inventory measurement.
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(6) Explanation of significant accounts

(a)

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
Cash $ 8,577 9,244
Working capital 80 80
Cash in banks 651,854 360,208
Checking deposits 7,759 5,385
Foreign currency deposits 287.601 413,239
Cash and cash equivalents per consolidated statements of $ 955,871 788,156

cash flow

Please refer to note 6(t) for the interest rate risk and the fair value sensitivity analysis of the financial
assets and liabilities of the Group.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017

Financial assets at designation as at fair values through
profit or loss:

Forward contracts $ 112 -
Financial assets held for trading:

Derivative instruments not used for hedging 250
Non-derivative financial assets 104.534
Total b 1312 104,784

Please refer to note 6(s) for the gains or losses on disposal of financial assets and liabilities
remeasured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage exposures due to fluctuations of foreign
exchange risk derived from its operating activities. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group
reported the following derivative financial instruments as held-for-trading financial assets
(liabilities) without the application of hedge accounting:

Contract
Fair value Currency amount
December 31,2018
Forward Contracts $ 112  USD,/TWD 2,450
December 31, 2017
Forward Contracts $ 250 USD,/TWD 2,800

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the maturity dates of the derivative financial assets and
liabilities were between January 18, 2019 to February 1, 2019 and February 2, 2018 to March 3.

(Continued)
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(c) Notes and accounts receivable (including related parties)
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December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Notes receivable b 56,591 2,739 -
Accounts receivable 1,373,332 1,118,150
Less: allowance for impairment 15.973 17.685
$ 1,413,950 1,103,204

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use of
lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables on December 31, 2018. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due, as well as incorporated forward looking information. The loss allowance provision in
Asia (except China), America and Europe as of December 31, 2018 was determined as follows:

Weighted-
Gross carrying average loss Loss allowance
amount rate provision

Current $ 896,036  0.06%~0.18% 691
1 to 30 days past due 108,019  0.47%~1.11% 1,001
31 to 60 days past due 2,361 1.71%~27.12% 128
61 to 90 days past due 13,590 17.10%~47.82% 2,718
91 to 120 days past due 2,467 54.02%~100% 2,157
More than 121 days past due 4.802 100% 4.802
$ 1,027,275 11,557

The loss allowance provision in China as of December 31, 2018 was determined as follows:

Weighted-
Gross carrying average loss Loss allowance
amount rate provision

Current $ 380,757 0%~0.75% 29
1 to 30 days past due 7,734 1.41%~3.19% 109
31 to 60 days past due 5,229 4.44%~6.10% 232
61 to 90 days past due 2,249 7.32%~9.03% 165
91 to 120 days past due 2,051 17.77%~37.57% 365
121 to 150 days past due 1,628 37.62%~60% 613
151 to 180 days past due 285  65.89%~80% 188
More than 181 days past due 2,715 100% 2.715
$ 402,648 4,416
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As of December 31, 2017, the Group applies the incurred loss model to consider the loss allowance
provision of notes and trade receivable, and the aging analysis of notes and trade receivable, which
were past due but not impaired, was as follows:

December 31,
2017 .
Past due 1 to 30 days 133,357
Past due 31 to 90 days 74,551
More than 90 days past due 14.334

222242

The movement in the allowance for notes and accounts receivable was as follows:

2017
Individually Collectively
assessed assessed
2018 impairment impairment Total
Balance on January 1, 2018 and 2017 per $ 17,685 10,753 - 10,753
IAS 39
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 -
Balance on January 1, 2018 per IFRS 9 17,685
Impairment loss recognized - - 7,354 7,354
Impairment loss reversed (1,618) - - -
Write off - (424) - (424)
Foreign exchange losses (94) {64) 66 2
Balance on December 31, 2018 and 2017 s 15,973 10,265 7,420 17.685

The Group has not provided the notes and accounts receivable and other receivables as collateral or
factored them for cash.

Other receivables

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Other receivables —related parties $ - 75,770
Other 15,529 21.444
$ 15,529 97,214

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group had no other receivables that were past due.
Therefore, no provisions for doubtful debt were required after the management’s assessment. For
other credit risk information, please refers to note 6(t).

(Continued)
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Inventories
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017

Merchandise $ 1,327 1,092
Finished goods 995,938 846,761
Work in process 352,595 234,957
Raw material 646.880 671,690
Total $ 1,996.740 1,754,500

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Hence, the Group makes
judgments and estimates in the net realizable value of inventory for financial statement. The rapid
development on technology may significantly affect the market demand on electronic products,
which can lead to product obsolescence, resulting in the cost of inventory to exceed its net realizable
value. Valuation of the inventory is based according to the estimated future demand for its products.
Hence, there is a possibility for the valuation to have a significant fluctuation.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group's inventories had not pledged as collateral.

Aside from charging operating costs through the ordinary sale of inventories, other gains and losses
directly recorded under operating costs in the years 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

2018 2017
Loss on market value of inventory $ 15,846 15,045
Loss on physical count 15,932 14,966
Loss {(gains) from scrapped inventory 1.436 (25
Total b 33.214 29,986

Financial assets carried at cost—noncurrent

Stockhoiding Investment
rate % cost Amount

December 31, 2017
Alliance TII venture Capital Corp 1.00 8 500 500

Alliance IH venture Capital Corp has liquidated completed on October 2018, the Group has received
the remainder of the investment fund amounting to $375 thousand.

The aforementioned investments held by the Group are measured at amortized cost at year-end given
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is large and the probability for each estimate cannot be
reasonably determined; therefore, the Group management had determined that the fair value cannot
be measured reliably.
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(g) Property, plant and equipment

The cost, depreciation, and impairment of the property, plant and equipment of the Group were as

follows:
Other
Land Buildings _ Machinery cquipment Total

Cost or deemed cost:
Balance at January 1, 2018 b 498,671 450,389 138,302 463,128 1,550,490
Additions 10,353 4,725 18,053 58,378 91,509
Disposals - - (925) {6,338) (7.263)
Reclassification - - - 2,834 2,834
Effect of changes in exchange rates 858 1,152 164 {1.525) 649
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 509.882 456,266 155,594 516,477 1.638.219
Balance at January 1, 2017 5 500,964 462,606 134,665 408,244 1,506,479
Additions - - 4,783 69,554 74,337
Disposals - - (463) (20,845) (21,308)
Reclassification - (8,637) - 7,784 (853)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (2.293) {3.580) (683) (1.609 (8.165)
Balance at December 31, 2017 S 498,671 450.389 138.302 463.128 1,550,490

Depreciation and impairment loss:
Balance at January 1, 2018 3 - 88,308 116,659 266,536 471,503
Depreciation - 11,864 7,944 81,740 101,548
Disposal - - (923) (6,296) (7,221)
Effect of changes in exchange rates - 264 138 (1.323) (921)
Balance at December 31,2018 s - 100,436 123.816 340.657 564,909
Balance at Janvary 1, 2017 3 - 78,523 101,501 211,905 391,929
Depreciation - 11,396 15,865 74,352 101,613
Disposal - - (331) (19,067) {19,398)
Reclassification - (1,076) - 164 °12)
Effect of changes in exchange rates - (535) (376} (818) (1,729
Balance at December 31, 2017 5 - 88,308 116,659 266.536 471.503

Carrying value:
December 31, 2018 s 509,882 355,830 31,778 175,820 1.073.310
December 31, 2017 b 498,671 362.081 21.643 196,592 1.078,987
January 1, 2017 k) 500,964 384.083 33.1064 196.339 1,114,550

Please refer to note 8 for the information of the pledged property, plant and equipment, as of

December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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Intangible assets

The cost, amortization, and impairment of the intangible assets of the Group were as follows:

Customer
Goodwill relation Total
Costs:
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 4,601 4,545 9,146
Effect of changes in exchange rates (99) (95) (194)
Balance at December 31, 2018 hY 4,502 4,450 8.952
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 4,654 4,598 9,252
Effect of changes in exchange rates (53) (53) (106)
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 4,601 4,545 9,146
Amortization:
Balance at January 1, 2018 3 - 2,777 2,777
Amortization - 1,511 1,511
Effect of changes in exchange rates - (87) (87
Balance at December 31, 2018 h - 4,201 4,201
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ - 1,277 1,277
Amortization - 1,502 1,502
Effect of changes in exchange rates - (2) (2)
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ - 2,777 2,777
Carrying value:
December 31,2018 $ 4,502 249 4,751
December 31, 2017 3 4.601 1,768 6,369
January 1, 2017 $ 4,654 3,321 7,975
(iy Amortization
Goodwill and customer relations were obtained by acquiring subsidiaries in March 2016. For
amortization expense, please refer to note 12.
(ii) Impairment Loss

In accordance with IAS 36 “impairment of assets,” the Group assesses the impairment loss of
intangible assets— goodwill, at the end of each reporting period. The recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit is the expected discount present value of future cash in flows. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, based on the result of the assessment of the Group, the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit was higher than the book value. Therefore,
there was no impairment Joss.

1)  The cash flow projections were estimated on the basis of previous experience, actual
operating results, and the financial budget.

(Continued)
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2)  Forecast of operating revenue, operating cost, and operating expenses are based on the
future operational plan, with consideration on the changes and competition in the market
industry.

3)  For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the discount rates for the present value
of recoverable amounts was 10% and 9%.

(iii) The Group did not pledge any collateral on intangible assets.

Short-term and long-term borrowings

The details, terms and clauses of the Group's short-term and long-term borrowings were as follows:

()

(i)

Short-term borrowings

December 31,2018
Maturity
Currency Inmterest rate year Amgunt
Secured loans TWD 1.05 2019 3 98,000
Unsecured loans TWD 1.05 2019 100,000
Unsecured loans RMB 5.39 2019 44,491
Unsecured loans UsD 4.4571 2019 11.037
Total $__ 253,528
December 31, 2017
Maturity
Currency _ Interest rate year Amount
Secured loans TWD 1.05 2018 $ 50,000
Unsecured loans TWD 1.08 2018 50,000 .
Unsecured loans RMB 5.65 2018 13,635
Unsecured loans UusD 3.6183 2018 11.672
Total 5 125,307

Please refer to note 6(t) for the disclosures on the Group's risk exposure to interest rates and
liquidity risks.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the unused credit facilities of the Group's short-term
borrowings amounted to $670,000 thousand and $829,815 thousand, respectively.

Long-term borrowings

December 31, 2018
Maturity
Currency Interest rate year Amount
Secured loans USD 4.4675 2020 $ 19,583
Current $ 1,840
Non-current 17,743
Total $ 19,583

(Continued)
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December 31,2017
Maturity
Currency _ Interest rate year Amount
Secured loans _ USD 3.4257 2020 $ 20,071
Current $ 1,784
Non-current 18,287
Total $ 20,071

Please refer to note 6(t) for the disclosures on the Group's risk exposure to interest rates and
liquidity risks.

(iii) Collateral of loans

The Group has mortgaged their assets as collateral of loans. Please refer to note 8.
Provisions

Warranty
provision Legal matter Total

Balance at January 1, 2018 3 41,999 ‘ 6,370 48,369
Provisions made during the year 37,544 - 37,544
Provisions used during the vear (29,328) (1,000) (30,328)
Reversal of provisions during the year (3,246) (5,370) (8,616)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (64) - (64)
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 46,905 - 46,905
Balance at January I, 2017 $ 34,984 6,370 41,354
Provisions made during the year 33,676 - 33,676
Provisions used during the year (26,338) - (26,338)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (323) - (323)
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 41.999 6,370 48.369
(i} Warranties

In 2018 and 2017, provisions are estimated based on the historical data of trading of interment

communications equipment, which are mainly associated with the Company’ s business

products. The Group anticipates the warranties to occur in the following year of the sales.
(ii) Legal

A legal claim brought against the Group and another individual by a former employee
demanding for compensation, wherein the Group originally estimated the related damage to be
$6,370 thousand as of December 31, 2017. However, based on the final decision made by the
court in April 2018, both accused will only have to pay the amount of $3,884 thousand, plus,
interest, which is calculated using 5% rate per annum beginning October 14, 2007, until the
repayment date. Out of the said amount, the Group has to pay $1,000 thousand, with the
remaining amount being assumed by the other individual. Since the Group had overestimated
its debt provision, the remaining balance had been recognized as other income.

(Continued)
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(k) Employee benefits

(i)

Defined benefit plans

The following table shows a reconciliation between the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets:

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
The present value of the defined benefit $ 55,710 56,167
obligations
Fair value of plan assets (22,572) (22.974)
The net defined benefit liability $ 33,138 33.193

The Group makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account at Bank of
Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. The plans (covered by the
Labor Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive an annual payment based on years
of service and average salary for the six months prior to retirement.

1)  Composition of plan assets

The Group allocates pension funds in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund, and such funds
are managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. With regard to the
utilization of the funds, minimum eamings in the annual distributions on the final
financial statements shall be no less than the earnings attainable from the amounts
accrued from two-year time deposits with interest rates offered by local banks.

The Group's Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance amounted to $22,572
thousand at the end of the reporting period. For information on the utilization of the labor
pension fund assets including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please refer to
the website of the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.

2)  Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations

The movements in present value of the Group's defined benefit plan obligation for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:

2018 2017
Defined benefit obligation at 1 January 56,167 56,401
Current service costs and interest 1,060 976
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability (asset)
—Return on plan assets (excluding amounts (391) 637
included in net interest expense)
—Due to changes in financial assumption of 1,357 (1,494)
actuarial (losses) gains
Benefits paid by the plan (2.483) (353)
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 55,710 56,167
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Movement of defined benefit plan assets

The movements in the fair value of the defined benefit plan assets for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:

2018 2017

Fair value of plan assets, January 1 $ 22,974 21,905
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit

liability (asset)

—Return on plan assets (excluding amounts 916 220

included in net interest expense)

Contributions made 1,165 1,202
Benefits paid by the plan (2.483) (353)
Fair value of plan assets, December 31 $ 22,572 22,974

Expenses recognized in profit or loss

The expenses recognized on profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, were as follows:

2018 2017
Current service cost b 321 368
Net interest on the defined benefit liability 448 381

(asset)

$ 769 749

2018 2017
Operating costs h 430 447
Selling expenses 87 3]
Research and development expenses 252 271
$ 769 749

Remeasurement in the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognized in other
comprehensive income

The Group's Remeasurement in the net defined benefit liability (asset} recognized in
other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, were as
follows:

2018 2017
Cumulative amount, January 1 $ 13,138 13,988
Recognized during the period 341 (850)
Cumulative amount, December 31 b 13.479 13.138
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6)  Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumption used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligation on December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018.12.31 2017.12.31
Discount rate 1.125 % 1.375 %
Future salary increases rate 3.300 % 3.300 %

The Group expects to make contributions of $1,123 thousand to the defined benefit plans
in the next year starting from the reporting date of 2018.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13.54 years.
7)  Sensitivity analysis

When calculating the present value of the defined benefit obligations, the Group uses
judgments and estimations to determine the actuarial assumptions, and future salary
changes, as of the financial statement date. Any changes in the actuarial assumptions may
significantly impact the amount of the defined benefit obligations.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the present value of defined benefit obligation
impact was as follow:

The impact of defined benefit
obligation
Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25%

December 31, 2018

Discount rate (0.25%) 3 (1,357) 1,411
Future salary increase rate (0.25%) 1,356 (1,304)
December 31, 2017

Discount rate (0.25%) (1,440) 1,494
Future salary increase rate (0.25%) 1,439 (1,393)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation by the amounts shown above. The method used in the sensitivity
analysis is consistent with the calculation of pension liabilities in the balance sheets.

There is no change in the method and assumptions used in the preparation of sensitivity
analysis for 2018 and 2017.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Group allocates 6% of each employee's monthly wages to the labor pension personal
account at the Bureau of the Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor
Pension Act. Under this defined contribution plan, the Group allocates a fixed amount to the
Bureau of the Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligations.

{Continued)



@

44

LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group's pension costs under the defined contribution method were $37,085 thousand and
$34,155 thousand for 2018 and 2017, respectively. Payment was made to the Bureau of the
Labor Insurance and the local authorities of the consolidated overseas subsidiaries.

(iii) Short-term employee benefit

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Annual leave benefit S 23,737 25.610

Income tax

According to the amendments to the "Income Tax Act” enacted by the office of the President of the
Republic of China (Taiwan) on February 7, 2018, an increase in the corporate income tax rate from
17% to 20% is applicable upon filing the corporate income tax return commencing FY 2018. The tax
rate of foreign subsidiaries for 2018 and 2017 is 15% to 25%.

(i) Income tax expenses (benefit)

The amount of income tax for 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

2018 2017
Current tax expense
Current period $ 94,330 73,105
Adjustment for prior periods 2.319 5.191
96.649 78.296
Deferred income tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 21,297 19,729
Effect on tax rated changes 9.298 -
30.595 19.729
Income tax expense from continuing operations b 127.244 98.025
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Reconciliation of the Company's income tax expense (benefit) and the profit before tax for

2018 and 2017 were as follows:

2018 2017
Net income before tax $ 604,283 491,952
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate . § 120,857 83,632
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdiction 20,983 25,488
Effect on tax rated changes 9,298 -
Previously underestimate income tax 2,319 5,191
Non-deductible expenses 63 2,391
Tax-free revenue (5,697) -
Unrecognized tax loss of deferred tax assets (2,513) -
Unrecognized changes in temporary differences (2,097 (3,809
Surtax on unappropriated earnings 6,622 -
R&D tax credits utilized (29,047 (13,611)
QOthers 6.456 (1.257)
Total $ 127,244 98.025

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

1}

2)

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
Deductible temporary differences $ - 2,097
Tax losses - 11.721
$ - 13.818

Recognized deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Changes in the amount of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for 2018 and 2017
were as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

Unrealized Tax
profit from differences
sales from sales Others Total

Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 17,262 10,737 26,564 54,563
Recognized in profit or loss 1.914 1.445 10.494 13,853
Balance at December 31,2018 § 19,176 12,182 37,058 68.416
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 23,598 12,988 24208 60,794
Recognized in profit or loss (6.336) (2,251) 2.356 (6,231)
Balance at December 31,2017 § 17,262 10,737 26,564 54,563
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Deferred income tax liabilities:
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Foreign
investment
income
accounted for
using equity
method Others Total
Balance at January 1, 2018 § (99,155) (942) (100,097)
Recognized in profit or loss (43.695) (553) (44,248)
Balance at December 31, S (142.850) (1.495) (144.345)
2018
Balance at January 1,2017 § (89,373) - (89,373)
Recognized in profit or loss (9.782) (942) (10.724)
Balance at December 31, h] (99,155) {942) (100,097)
2017

(iii) Examination and Approval

The tax returns of the Company were examined and approved by the tax authorities through
2016.

Capital and other equity

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the ordinary shares with par value of $10 per share, amounted to
$1,500,000 thousand; also, 108,993 thousand and 104,649 thousand common stocks, respectively,
were issued from the shares mentioned above. All issued shares were paid up upon issuance.

A reconciliation of the Company's outstanding shares for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017 were as follows:

Unit: thousands shares

2018 2017
Balance at January 1 104,649 103,645
Stock dividends of ordinary share 2,124 -
Exercise of employee share options 2.220 1.004
Balance at December 31 108.993 104,649

(i) Issue of common stock

On June 19, 2018, the stockholders approved a resolution to transfer the stockholders' bonus of
$21,240 thousand for the issuance of 2,124 thousand shares of common stocks, with a face
value of 10 dollars per share. The Company has received the approval from the Financial
Supervisory Commission for this capital increase on July 17, 2018, with August 12, 2018
recognized as the date of capital increase.

(Continued)
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Due to the exercise of the employee stock options in 2018 and 2017, the Company issued
2,220 thousand shares and 1,004 thousand shares of stocks, respectively. Exercise prices were
$31.7 and $29.7 per share in 2018 and $18.4 in 2017.

Capital surplus

The composition of the Company's capital surplus are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Share premium from issuance b 673,767 610,986
Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures 17,539 17,539
~accounted for using equity method
Employee share options 3,887 19,016
Employee share options expired 9.392 8.807
$ 704,585 656,348

In accordance with the ROC Company Act, realized capital reserves can only be reclassified as
share capital or distributed as cash dividends after offsetting losses. The aforementioned
capital reserves include share premiums and donation gains. In accordance with the Securities
Offering and Issuance Guidelines, the amount of capital reserves to be reclassified under share
capital shall not exceed 10% of the actual share capital amount.

Retained earnings

1

2)

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Company Act, 10% of net income after tax should be set aside as
legal reserve, until it is equal to authorized capital. If the Company experienced profit for
the year, the distribution of the statutory earnings reserve, either by new shares or by
cash, shall be decided at the shareholders meeting, and the distribution amount is limited
to the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of the paid-in capital.

Special earnings reserve

By choosing to apply exemptions granted under IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards during the Company's first-time adoption of
the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC, cumulative translation adjustments (gains) recognized
under shareholders' equity were reclassified to retained earnings at the adoption date. In
accordance with Ruling No. 1010012865 issued by the FSC on April 6, 2012, an increase
in retained earnings due to the first-time adoption of the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC shall
be reclassified as a special earnings reserve during earnings distribution. However, when
adjusted retained earnings due to the first-time adoption of the IFRSs endorsed by the
FSC are insufficient for the appropriation of a special earnings reserve at the transition
date, the Company may appropriate a special earnings reserve up to the amount of
increase in retained earnings. Upon the use, disposal, or reclassification of related assets,
the Company may reverse the special earnings reserve proportionately. As a result of
elections made according to IFRS 1, the Company has reclassified $(13,624) thousand to
retained earnings and is not required to appropriate a special earnings reserve.
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In accordance with the above Ruling, a portion of current-period earnings and
undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as a special earnings reserve
during eamnings distribution. The amount to be reclassified should be equal to the
difference between the total net current-period reduction of special earnings reserve
resulting from the first-time adoption of IFRSs and the carrying amount of other
shareholders’ equity as stated above. Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior-period
earnings shall be reclassified as a special earnings reserve (which does not qualify for
earnings distribution) to account for cumulative changes to other shareholders' equity
pertaining to prior periods due to the first-time adoption of IFRSs. Amounts of
subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other shareholders' equity shall
qualify for additional distributions.

Earnings distribution

The Company's articles of incorporation require that after-tax earnings from the current
vear shall first be used to offset any prior year's deficit and pay income tax; and 10% of
the remaining balance shall be set aside as legal reserve. The appropriation for legal
reserve is discontinued when the balance of the legal reserve equals the total authorized
capital. Special reserve may be appropriated for operations or to meet regulations. After
the distribution of dividends, the remaining carnings, if any, may be appropriated
according to the proposal presented in the annual stockholders' meetings by the board of
directors.

After the abovementioned appropriation, in order to operate proper investment and
maintain Capital adequacy ratio simultaneously, the Company uses the Residual dividend
policy to measure its monetary demand for the future according to its budget planned for
the following years, then executes financial intermediation with refain earnings, after
which, distributes cash dividends with the remaining earnings, which should not less than
30% of the total dividends amount.

In accordance with Ruling No. 1010012865 issued by the FSC on April 6, 2012, a
portion of current-period earnings and undistributed prior-period earnings shall be
reclassified as special earnings reserve during earnings distribution. The amount to be
reclassified should equal the current-period total net reduction of other shareholders’
equity. Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as
special earnings reserve (which does not qualify for earnings distribution) to account for
cumulative changes to other shareholders’ equity pertaining to prior periods. The
amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other shareholders’
equity shall qualify for additional distributions. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 the
special earnings reserve amounted to $44,515 thousand and $29,708 thousands,
respectively.
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Earnings distribution for 2017 and 2016 was decided via the general meeting of
shareholders held on June 19, 2018 and June 15, 2017, respectively. The relevant
dividend distributions to shareholders were as follows:

2017 2016
Amount Amount
per share per share
(NT Total (NT Total
dollars) Amount dollars) Amount
Dividends distributed to

common stockholders:
Cash $ 2.0 212,340 3.0 313,950
Stock 0.2 21.240 - -
Total $ 233,580 313.950

(iv) Other equities (net of tax)

Foreign exchange
differences arising

from foreign Non-controlling
operation interests Total

Balance at January 1, 2018 5 {44,515) (4,354) (48,269)
Foreign exchange differences arising (12,851) {(6,075) (18,926)

from net assets of foreign operation
Balance at December 31, 2017 h) (57,366) (10,429} (67,795)
Balance at January 1, 2017 £ (27,483) (2,833 (30,316)
Foreign exchange differences arising (17,032) (1,521) (18,553)

from net assets of foreign operation
Balance at December 31, 2017 s (44.515) (4,354) (48.869)

(n) Share-based payment

On January 6, 2012, the Securities and Futures Bureau approved the Company's issuance of 3,000
units of Employee’ s Stock option; with each unit representing 1,000 shares of common stock,
wherein a total of 3,000 thousand shares may be subscribed. The option holder is eligible, two years
after issuance until the sixth year of issuance, to convert a certain percentage of options to common
stocks at the price designated on the issuance date. Under such circumstances as changes in equity or
distribution of cash dividends, the exercise price per share and the number of subscription per option
are to be adjusted using a specific formula. However, the adjusted exercise price should not be lower
than the par value. All options were granted on June 7, 2012 and their fair value on the grant date
was priced using the Black Scholes option pricing model. The weighted-average data of each
assumption were as follows:

Dividend rate - %
Expected volatility 13.41 %
Risk-free interest rate 0.93 %
Expected life 5 years

(Continued)
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The Company estimates the compensation to be $6,936 thousand based on the above assumptions.
The compensation had been completed amortized from 2012 to 2015.

The ouistanding stock option rights as follows:

2017
Exercise price
Employee stock options in 2012 Units {dollars)
Outstanding balance as of January 1 : 795 § 18.4
Options granted - -
Options exercised 725 18.4
Options cancelled - -
Options expired 70 18.4
Outstanding balance as of December 31 - -
Exercisable as of December 31 - -
Exercisable shares per unit as of December 31 —adjusted -
Fair market value S 3.7

The expected duration of the employee stock option issued in 2012 was expired on June 7 ,2017.

On August 25, 2015, the Securities and Futures Bureau approved the Company's issuance of 3,000
units of Employee’ s Stock option; with each unit representing 1,000 shares of common stock,
wherein a total of 3,000 thousand shares may be subscribed. The option holder is eligible, two years
after issuance until the sixth year of issuance, to convert a certain percentage of options to common
stocks at the price designated on the issuance date. Under such circumstances as changes in equity or
distribution of cash dividends, the exercise price per share and the number of subscription per option
are to be adjusted using a specific formula. However, the adjusted exercise price should not be lower
than the par value. All options were granted on September 17, 2015 and their fair value on the grant
date was priced using the Black Scholes option pricing model. The weighted-average data of each
assumption were as follows:

Dividend rate - %
Expected volatility 3499 %
Risk-free interest rate 0.8779 %
Expected life 5 years

The Company estimates the compensation to be $20,657 thousand based on the above assumptions.
The compensation will be amortized over three years. Under the fair value method, the
compensation of the option were estimated to be $1,463 thousand and $7,187 thousand in 2018 and
2017. The additional paid-in capital also increased due to the stock option plan.

{(Continued)
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The outstanding stock option rights as follows:

Employee stock options in 2015
Outstanding balance as of January 1

Options granted

Options exercised

Options cancelled

Options expired

Qutstanding balance as of December 31

Exercisable as of December 31

Exercisable shares per unit as of December 31 —adjusted

Fair market value

Employee stock options in 2015
Outstanding balance as of January 1

Options granted

Options exercised

Options cancelled

Options expired

Outstanding balance as of December 31

Exercisable as of December 31

Exercisable shares per unit as of December 31 —adjusted

Fair market value

2018
Exercise price
Units (dollars)
2,780 $ 31.7
2,220 31.7/29.7
75 31.7/29.7
485 29.7
485 -
1,060
$ 4.3
2017
Exercise price
Units {dollars)
2,810 % 34.1
30 317
2.780 31.7
1,000
$ 4.3

As of December 31, 2018, the expected duration of the employee stock option issued in 2015 was

1.71 years.

Earnings per share

The calculation of the Group's basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for years

ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

(i) Basic earnings per share

Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares
Basic earnings per share (in NT dollars)

2018 2017
S 424,236 348,628
$ 108,335 106,685
3.92 3.27
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(i) Diluted earnings per share

2018 2017
Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders of b 424,236 348,628
the Company (diluted) 7
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic) 108,335 106,685
Impact of potential common shares
Effect of employee stock bonus 1,820 1,421
Effect of employee stock option 161 797
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (diluted) $ 110,416 108,903
Diluted earnings per share (in NT dollars) 3.84 3.20

For calculation of the dilutive effect of the stock option, the average market value is assessed
based on the quoted market price where the Company’s option is outstanding.

(p) Revenue from contracts with customers

()

(if)

Details of revenue

2018
Sale of Network
Communication
and other
related products Qthers Total
Primary geographical markets:
Asia b 3,019,128 19,242 - 3,038,370
America 3,453,346 62,803 3,516,149
Europe 753,463 3,143 756,606
Others 149.288 367 149.655
s 7,375,225 85,555 7,460,780
Primary merchandises/services
lines: '
Network communication $ 6,481,152 79,140 6,560,292
apparatus
Others 894.073 6415 900,488
h 7,375,225 85,555 7,460,780

Unearned revenue, net for consolidated Company amounted to $4,690 thousand for the years
ended December 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2018, accumulated unearned revenue
amounted to $49,458 thousand. Unearned revenue was booked due to identifiable services to
be rendered.

Contract balances
December 31, January 1,
2018 2018
Current contract liabilities $ 39,020 16,698
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For details on accounts receivable and allowance for impairment, please refer to note 6(c).

The amount of revenue recognized for the year ended December 31, 2018 that was included in
the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period was $16,698 thousand.

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers
for the electronic components sales contracts, for which revenue is recognized when products
are delivered to customers.

(@) Revenue

()

The details of the Group's revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017 were as follows:

2017
Sale of goods $ 6,354,394
Service income 80.105
$ 6,434,499

Unearned revenue, net for consolidated Company amounted to $4,557 thousand for the year ended
December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, accumulated unearned revenue amounted to $54,362
thousand. Uneamned revenue was booked due to identifiable services to be rendered.

Remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors

In accordance with the Company's article, the Company should contribute 10% to 20% of its profit
as employee remuneration, and no greater than 2% as directors’ and supervisors' remuneration, when
there is profit for the year. However, if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should first
be used to offset the deficit.

Employees of subsidiaries may also be entitled to the employee remuneration of the Company,
which can be settled in the form of cash or stock.

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company recognized its employee
remuneration of $72,462 thousand and $56,482 thousand, respectively, and directors' and
supervisors' remuneration of $7,246 thousand and $5,648 thousand, respectively. These amounts are
calculated by using the Company's pre-tax net profit for the period before deducting the amount of
the remuneration to employees and directors under the Company’ s articles of association, and
expensed under operating cost or expense. Related information would be available at the Market
Observation Post System website.

The amounts, as stated in the consolidated financial statements, are identical to those of the actual
distributions for 2018 and 2017.

(Continued)
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Non-operating income and expenses

(1)

(i5)

(iif)

Other income

The details of the Group's other income for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were
as follows:

_ 2018 2017
Interest income $ 7,711 4,936
Rent income 5,067 3,556
Other 49.885 30.343
Total other income $ 62,663 38,835

Other gains and losses

The details of the Group's other gains and losses for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017 were as follows:

2018 2017
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment $ (42) (898)
Losses on foreign exchange (9,649) (39,974)
Gains on financial assets (liabilities) at fair value 395 619
through profit or loss
Other (1.445) (928)
Net other losses gains and losses $ (10,741) (41,181)

Finance costs

The details of the Group's finance costs for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were
as follows:

2018 2017
Interest expense— short-term loans S 3,203 3,657

Financial instruments

@

Credit risk
1)  Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount exposed to
credit risk.

2)  Concentration of credit risk

Approximately, 13% and 17% of the Group's total sales were derived from a single client
in 2018 and 2017, respectively. Region wise, approximately 88% and 89% of the sales
were significantly concentrated in Asia and America in 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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(i) Liquidity risk

55

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including

estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Contractual Within a
amount cash flows year 1-2 vears 3-5 years  Qver 8 years
December 31, 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short-term debts $ 253,528 255,454 255,454 - - -
Notes payable 39,020 39,020 39,020 - - -
Accounts payable 1,402,579 1,402,579 1,402,579 - - -
Other payables 144,255 144,255 144,255 - - -
Long-term debts {(including due within a year) 19,583 20,896 1,963 18,933 - -
Guaraniee deposits received 2.673 2673 - - - 2.673
§ 1,861,638 1,864,877 1,843,271 18,933 - 2,673
December 31, 2017
Non-derivative financial liabifities
Short-term debts $ 125,307 126,311 126,311 - - -
Accounts payable (including related parties) 1,176,183 1,176,183 1,176,183 - - -
Other payables 139,573 139,573 139,573 - - -
Long-tenm debis (including due within a year) 20,0M 21,809 1,939 £,939 17,931 -
Guaranice deposits received 1.028 1.028 - - - 1.028
§ 1,462,162 1.464.904 1,444,006 1,939 17,931 1.028
(iii) Currency risk
1) Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Group's significant exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:
Foreign Exchange
currency rate NTD
December 31, 2018
Financial assets:
Monetary items: .
USD (note) $ 50,364 30.6590 1,544,115
Financial liabilities:
Monetary items:
USD (note) $ 36,591 30.6590 1,121,841
December 31, 2017
Financial assets:
Monetary items:
USD (note) b 56,921 29.7350 1,692,556
Financial liabilities:
Monetary items:
USD (note) b 37,726 29.7350 1,121,780

Note: Amounts are designated before consolidation.
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2)  Sensitivity analysis

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the translation of foreign
currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
trade and other payables that are denominated in foreign currency. A 1 dollar
appreciation (depreciation) of the NTD against the USD as of December 31, 2018 and
2017 would have increased or decreased the net income by $11,018 thousand and
$15,932 thousand, respectively. The analysis is performed on the same basis for both
periods.

3) Foreign exchange gain and loss on monetary item

Since the Group has many kinds of functional currency, the information on foreign
exchange gain (loss) on Monetary items is disclosed by total amount. For the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, foreign exchange gain (loss) (including realized and
unrealized abortions) amounted to $9,649 thousand and $39,974 thousand, respectively.

Interest rate analysis

Please refer to the note for liquidity risk management and the Group's interest rate exposure to
its financial assets and liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the risk exposure of the interest rate on
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments on the reporting date. Regarding assets
with variable interest rates, the analysis is on the basis of the assumption that the amount of
assets outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding throughout the year. The rate of
change is expressed as the interest rate increases or decreases by 1% when reporting to
management internally, which also represents the management of the Group's assessment on
the reasonably possible interval of interest rate change.

If the interest rate increases or decreases by 1%, the Group's net income will increase or
decrease by $2,185 thousand and $1,207 thousand, respectively, for the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017, with all other variable factors remain constant. This is mainly due to the
Group's borrowing in variable rates.

Information of fair value
1)  Categories and fair value of financial instruments

Except for the following, carrying amount of the Group's financial assets and liabilities
are valuated approximately to their fair value. No additional disclosure is required in
accordance to the Regulations.

December 31, 2018

Carrying Fair value
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets § 112 - 112 - 112
for hedging

(Continued)



2)

LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

57

December 31, 2017
Fair value
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets $ 250 - 250 - 250

for hedging
Non-derivative financial 104,534 - 104,534 - 104,534

assets for trading
Total $_ 104,784 - 104,784 - - 104,784

Valuation techniques and assumptions used in fair value determination

The financial instruments of the Group are evaluated by using the publicly-adopted
valuation models. Forward contracts are referred to the evaluation outcomes from
financial institutions. The financial instrument in China is evaluated based on the market
value. Equity instruments not held for trading are evaluated by using discounted cash

flow method.

(u) Financial risk management

(D

(i)

QOverview

The Group is exposed to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

1} Creditrisk
2)  Liquidity risk
3) Market risk

This note expresses the information on risk exposure and objectives, policies and process of
risk measurement and management. For detailed information, please refer to the related notes
to each risk.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
risk management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Committee,
which is responsible for establishing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies.
The committee reports its activities regularly to the Board of Directors.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by
the Group, to set control mechanism, and to monitor the execution of the policies. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect the changes in market
conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, developed a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(Continued)
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The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors the risk which should be in
compliance with the Group's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.
Assisting the Board of Directors in oversight, the internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad
hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, and reports the results to the Board
of Directors.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's
receivables from customers and investment securities.

1)

2)

Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by each customer’s condition.
However, management also considers the demographics of the customers, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors may
have an influence on credit risk, particularly during deteriorating economic
circumstances. The Group’s Accounts Receivable and Notes Receivable are mainly due
from customers in Asia and America, accounting 84% and 89% of the total amount of the
receivables as of December 31, 2018, and 2017, respectively.

The Group has established a credit policy wherein each new customer is assessed for
credit rating before standard payment, delivery terms, and conditions are granted. The
analysis includes external ratings, when available, and in some cases, bank references.
Purchase limits are established for each customer and reviewed regularly. Any amount
below the limits requires no approval from the Board of Directors. Customers that fail to
meet the Company's rating benchmark are allowed to transact with the Company only on
a prepayment basis.

The Group has established an allowance for bad debt account to reflect the estimated
losses on trade receivables, other receivables, and investments. The allowance for bad
debt account consists of specific losses related to individually significant exposure and
unrecognized losses arose from similar assets groups. The allowance for bad debt
account is based on the historical collection record of similar financial assets.

Investments

The credit risk exposure in the bank deposits, fixed income investments and other
financial instruments are measured and monitored by the Group's finance department.
Since the Group's transactions are with the counterparties, and the contractually obligated
counterparties are the banks, financial institutions, corporate organizations and
government agencies with good credits, there are no compliance issues, and therefore,
there is no significant credit risk.

(Continued)
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3)  QGuarantees

The consolidated company policy provides endorsements and assurances to be offered
only to companies who it has business relationship with, as well as to those companies
who hold more than 50% of the voting rights of the consolidated company, either directly
or indirectly. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group did not provide any
endorsement and guarantees.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.
The Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly
marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of the expected cash flows on financial
liabilities (other than trade payables) over the succeeding 60 days. The Group also monitors
the level of expected cash outflows on trade and other payables. This excludes the potential
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rate, and equity prices which will affect the group's income or the value of its holding of
financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposure within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return.

In order to manage market risk, the Group conducts derivative transactions and incurs financial
liabilities. All such transactions are within the guidelines set by the Risk Management
Committee. Generally, the Group seeks to apply hedge accounting in order to manage volatility
in profit or loss.

1)  Currency risk

The group reports its financial statements in TWD, while conducting such transaction as
sales, purchase, and borrowing in USD, thereby exposing itself to currency risk.

The Group hedges most of its trade receivables and trade payables denominated in a
foreign currency. The Group hedges its currency risk through forward exchange contracts
with maturity less than one year from the reporting date.

2) Interest rate risk

To avoid interest rate risk, the Group raises its working capital mainly through long-term
and short-term loans. Should long term loans be needed, plans and conditions of early
repayment shall be settled in advance.

(Continued)
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Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of ordinary shares,
capital surplus, retained earnings, and non-controlling interests of the Group. The Board of Directors
monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Group's debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Total liabilities 5 2,786,459 2,264,168
Less: cash and cash equivalents 955.871 788.156
Net debt S 1,830,588 1,476,012
Total equity $ 3,214,701 2,916,912
Debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio 57 % 51 %

The increase of the debt to capital equity ratio as of December 31, 2018 was due to the increase in
accounts payable, debts and deferred income tax liabilities.

As of December 31, 2018, no changes have been made on the capital management.

(7) Related-party transactions

(a)

(b)

©

Parent Company and ultimate controlling party
The Company is the ultimate controlling party of the Group.
Related-party and relationship between the Company

The Group has transactions with its related parties as follows:

Related-parties Relationship between the Company
Jie Wei Investment Development Co., Ltd. One of the board of directors of the Company also
(Jie Wei) serves as a director of the related-party
Lanner Foundation Related party
Mr. Zhang Jun Hai Key management of Consolidated Company
Significant related party transactions
(i) Leases

A lease contract with the period from June 2015 to May 2020 was signed with other related
party on April 25, 2015. In accordance with the contract, the group provided $175 thousand as
deposit and booked the same amount under non-current asset. Rent for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to $1,320 thousand. There were no outstanding
balance as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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(ii) Contribution
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With the approval from the broad of directors, the Group agreed to contribute $3,500 thousand
and $6,200 thousand to Lanner Foundation for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
Recorded under operating expenses —administrative expenses.

(iii} Other

The key management personnel of the Group participated in the cash increase of Beijing Lilua
Haiwell Technology Co., Ltd. with the amount of $75,770 thousand, recognized under other
accounts receivable, as of December 31, 2017. There were no such conditions on December

31, 2018.
(d) Key management personnel compensations

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Pledged assets

The carrying values of pledged assets were as follows:

2018 2017
96,964 93,945
816 810
97,780 94,755

December 31,

December 31,

Pledged assets Object 2018 2017
Certificate of deposits Guarantee for customs 2,349 2,327
(recorded under other
financial assets— current)
Land Guarantee for long and short- 414,439 413,582
term debts
Building Guarantee for long and short- 252,000 257,676
term debts
668,788 673,585
Significant Commitments and Contingencies
(a) The Group's unrecognized construction contract commitments are as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 112,673 115,101
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(b) Operating lease commitments

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group had signed uncancellable contracts in form of
operating lease. The least amount of the rent to be paid in the future are listed as following:

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
Under a year 3 45,597 37,112
Over 1 year but under 5 years ‘ 37,134 78,655
Over 5 years 6,058 46,664
$ 88,789 162,431

(10) Losses due to major disasters: None.

(11) Subsequent events: None.

(12) Other
(a) The following is a summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expensed
by function:
By function] Years ended December 31, 2018 Years ended December 31, 2017
Operating | Operating Operating |Operating
By item costs expenses Total costs expenses Total
Employee benefits
Salary 214,655 804,660 1,019,315 188,053 693,161 881,214
Labor and health insurance 21,476 49,637 71,113 15,414 48,040 63,454
Pension 8,970 28,884 37,854 7,502 27,402 34,904
Remuneration of directors - 6,368 6,368 - 4,867 4,867
Others 13,164 39,355 52,519 12,505 35,534 48,039
Depreciation 32,431 69,117 101,548 40,049 61,564 101,613
IAmortization - 1,511 1,511 - 1,502 1,502
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(a)

Information on significant transactions:
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The following is the information on significant transactions required by the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial

Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Group:

(i) Loans to other parties:

Unit: thousand NTD

Name of Name of | Financial [Relaied] Highest balante | Ending | Amouni thge of|[Purposes of fund| T Reasons For | All Collaeral | Firanting Jimi] Masimum
Ra. panty | offi ing to actually | imerest |financing for the]  amountfor | shoni<erm | for bad for cach financing
aceonnt other parlies drawn | rales berrowers iness between| i i debt barvowing  {limly for the
lender harrower ditring the vear | batance {Note 5) hvo pardies Item | Value CaMEANY. lender
0 {The Company Beijing L&ES  [Other Yes 75,635 75635| 75635| $6% 2 - [Qperaling - - 587,698 1,175,396
jLancom fvabl keapital (ale ) Nole 1)
Matform Tech. |- related
Co., Lid. {L&S)paries
7 [Lancom Helding [Beifing L&S  JOther Yes 57818 57,838 | 57.838) 5.6% 2 - [Operaling . - 144,018 288,035
[Ca L1d [Lancom jvabl eapital (Mot ) (Nale 3)
[Platforim Tech. |- selated
[Co., Lid {L&S¥pariies

Note Ll: The atlowable aggregate amaunt of financing provided to others rannel exoped 40% of'the Company's stockliolder's equity
Nole2:  Where an inter<ompany or inler-firm shori-lerm financing faility is necessary, provided that such finanting amount shall not exceed 20 percent of the Company’s stockholders equity. The Lotal amount leadable Lo other
subsidiaries and the amount listed above cannol exceed 40 percent of the Company's stockholder’s equity

Note 3;  The maximum loan extended to all panties of LANCOM ROLDING CO., Ltd should nol be over 407 of 101a] equily

Noted:  Where an inter-company of inter-firm shori-lerm financing facility is necessary, provided thal such financing amount shall nol exceed 20 percent of LANCOM HOLDING CO,, Lid 's siockholder’s equily The lotal
amount lendable 10 other subsidiaries and the amount flisted above cannot exceed 30 percent of LANCOM HOLDING CO,, Lid s steckholder’s equity

Note§:  Credit period: The financing period shoutd net be ever one year
Nole6:  Loans to other parties mimbering s as follows:

(t) ifit’s ordinary business relationship, 1he number i 17

(2) ilit needs shori-term financial funds, the number is "2"

(ii) Guarantees and endorsements for other parties: None,

(iii} Information regarding securities held at the reporting date (subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures not included): None

(iv} Information regarding purchase or sale of securities for the period exceeding 300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in
EP pany’s p

capital:
itn Thousands of New Triwan Dollarsh
Category and Name of ip| _Bepinning Balanee Purchases Sales Ending Balanre

Name ol counter- | with the Gain (loss)

Lampany. name of security Accounl name BArtY eompany Shares | Amount Shares Amonnr, Skarcs Price Cost on disposal | Shares | Amounl
Beijing L&S Lancom [China Merchants Bank  [Financial assets at fair [China . - 101,603 . F73.514 - 7.7 2y - - -
Maiform Tech Co., [Financial Products - value though profit or [Merchants
Lid (L&5) RMB quench Gold Mool foss— camrent [Bank
[Beijing L&S Lancotn [China Merchanis Bank  [Financial assels at [air [China - - - - 324,782 - 324,782] 324,782 - - .
[Plaiform Tech Co., [Financial Products — value though profit or PMerchants
[Ltd {L&S) Point Gold Pool 85— curren) [Eank

(v) TInformation on acquisition of real estate with purchase amount exceeding 300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in

capital:
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Doflars)
Il the counter-party is a related party,
disclose the previous transfer infarmation | References | Purpose of
Relationship Relagionship for aequisition
Narme of Name of Transaction [ Transaction | Statws of | Covnter-party |  with the with the | Date of determining | and current
company property date amount | payment Company | Owder | Company |iransfer| Amount price condition_| Others
[Beijing L&S Name of property. [Octaber 25, 262,872 [Contract  [Counter - pany: No B - - - [Valuation [Operating No
[Lancom Platform [Offfec of RO1% cijing Bai Jia keport hictivities
[Tech. Co., Lid.  [Huilengguanhvi cal Estate
KL&S) outh Road, roup Co., Ltd
Ehangping
istrict, Beijing

{(vi) Information regarding receivables from disposal of real estate exceeding 300 millien or 20% of the Company’s paid-in

capital: None,
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regarding related-parties purchases and/or sales exceeding 100 million or 20% of the Company’ s paid-in

capital:
Unit: thousand daliars
The status and reason for
deviation from arm's~ Account / note receivable
Namg of Transaction details Iength transaction {pavable)
Company Counter-party Relationship | Purchase / Percentage of | Credit Percentage of total [Remarks
Sale Amaount | total purchases / | period | Unit price [Credit periodf Balance acceunts / notes
sales receivable (pavable)
IThe Company [LANNER [Subsidiary [Sales (1,745,157 {30) B0 days - - 360,854 28 % (Note 1)
[ELECTRONICS USA,
IINC.
[The Company IDongguan Likua [Subsidiary Bales {504,567 {9) %60 days - 143,905 12 % (Note 1)
[laiwell Tech. Co.,
Ltd.
[The Company ILEI Technology [Subsidiary Sales (388,634 {7) 94120 days - 94,540 6 % (Note 1)
[Canada Ltd.
[Dongguan Litua  [Beijing L&S Lancom  [Subsidiary I5ales (1,079,235 (77) %60 days - - o (Note 1)
iaiwell Tech. Co., flalform Tech. Co.,
itd, Lid. (L&S)
Dongguan Likua cijing HDZX |Associated |Sales (315,054 (23) %460 days - 30,771 100 % {Nowe 1)
Haiwel! Technology{Technolegy CO., Lid. [company
ICo., Lid.

Note I;

The transactions withio the Group were eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

(viii) Information regarding receivables from related-parties exceeding 100 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital:

(ix)
()

Unit: thousand doflars

Name of Balance of | Turnover Overdue amount Amounts received in | Allowances
Counter-party | Relationship {receivables from for bad
related party related party rate Amount Action taken | subsequent period debts
(Note)
The Company [LANNER Subsidiary 360,854 4,43 - 349.022 -
ELECTRONICS Until March 21, 2019)
USA, INC.
The Company [Dongguan Libua  [Subsidiary 143,905 3.45 - 142,351 -
[Haiwell Tech. Co.. Until Match 21, 2019)
Lid.

Note: The transactions within the Group were eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
Information regarding trading in derivative financial instruments: Please refer fo Notes 6(b).

Significant transactions and business relationship between the parent company and its subsidiaries in December 31, 2018:

Unit: thousand dollars

Name of counter- Existing Transaction details
relationship Percentage of the total
No. | Name of company party with the Account name Amount Trading terms consolidated revenue
counter-party or total assets

0 [The Company LANNER 1 Sales 1,745,157 [No significant differences 23.39%
ELECTRONICS
USA, INC.

0 [The Company Dongguan Lihua 1 Sales 304,967 [No significant differences 677 %
Haiwell Technology
Co.. Ltd.

0 [The Company ILET Technology 1 Sales 388.634 |120 days 521%
Canada Ltd.

0 [The Company [LANNER ] lAccounts receivable 360,854 No significant differences 6.01 %
[ELECTRONICS
USA, INC,

¢ |The Company Dongguan Lihua 1 lAccounts receivable 143,905 |No significant differences 240 %
Haiwell Technology
Co., Ltd.

0 {The Company LEI Technology ] Accounts receivable 94,549 120 days 1.57%
[Canada Ltd.

1 [Dongguan Lihua  [BeijingL & S 3 Sales 1,079,235 [No significant differences 14.46%

[Haiwell Technology [Lancom Platform of
ICo.. Lid. [Technology CO., Ltd.
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Name of counter- Existing Transaction details
relationship Percentage of the tota)
No. | Name of company party with the Account name Amount Trading terms consolidated vevenue
counter-party or total assets
1 {Dongguan Lihwa  {BeijingL & § 3 lAdvance sales 39,667 [No significant differences 6.61 %
ITaiwelt Technology [Lancom Platform of receipts
Co., Lid. [Technology CO., Lid.
1 |Dongguan Lihua  [Beijing HDZX 3 Sales 315,054 No significant differences 422 %
[1aiwell Technology [Technology CO., Lid.
Co., Lid.
1 [Dongguan Lihwa  [Befjing MDZX 3 Accounts receivable 30,771 No significant differences 0.51 %
Haiwell Technology {Technology CO., Ltd.
Co., Ltd.
2 [LANNER [The Company 2 Sales 19,960 INo significant differences 0.27 %
ELECTRONICS
USA, INC,
3 [LEI Technology [The Company 2 Sales 17,392 [No significant differences 0.23 %
ICanada Ltd.

Note 1: Company numbering is as follows:
(1) Parent company is 0.

(2) Subsidiary starts from 1.
Nete 2:  The number of the relationship with the transaction counterparty represents the following:

(1) “1" represents downstream transactions,
(2) “2” represents upstream lransactions.
(3) “3" represents sidestream transactions.

Information on investees:

The following are the information on investees for the years ended December 31, 2018 (excluding information on investees in

Mainland China):
Lnil, theusand dollars/ihousand shares
Name of investor Qriginal coxl Ending balance Mmimum | Ned incame | Investment
investor investee Address Scope of business, De¢ember 31,| December 31,|  Shares Ratio of [ Doak value [invesiment i of invesice income Remarks
2018 2007 shares 2018 {lostes}
[The Company F ANNER ELECTRONICS [USA [Trading of computer peripheral 238819 140,935 2,350| toosd 256712 248815 34,240 14,240| (Nole 1)
FUSA,INC CO,LTD. lequipment
[The Company LLanner Electronics Mauritins [Fmvesting 84,590 84,990 2,653 100 5% 616,648 84,000 54,475 544751 (Nowe 1)
'Mauritus) Inc
[The Comparny § El Technology Canada [Canada [Trading of computer peripheral 92282 56,936 3,305 160 %4 20 92,282 11,188 11188 {Noie 1)
ftd equipment
[Lanner Elecironics Lancom Holding Co., Lid  [Samoa linvesting 78,251 18,251 2621 103 44 20088 78,251 54,610 546101 {Note b)
K Mauriios) Inc
Nete b: Aforementionad amounts have bren eliminaled upon consolidation
Information on investment in Mainland China:
(iY The names of investees in Mainland China, the scope of businesses and products, and other information:
Uit shonend dillars
Name of imctee Twaed | Motbodof | Cumulathe Imvesiment Fw Guring Curmlathe | Netincome pn |Direct/ indirect] Matimum | dnvesiment | Bowkvalue | Accummlsted
Scope of busincas imesiment finveximend (amount) current periml [nvestment (amount Investment | lovesment | Income (low) remkeance of
In Mainland Ching capital | (Nete1) | from Talwan avol | Remitance | Repacriation | from Tatwanavol [ Inveser Iolding. 1h 2018 Note ) Cloic2) | eamlngstn
Sunuary 1,2068 | amourt | amoun | Decrmber 3t, 2018 percentage urrent preiod
s cing LS Lancor  racing of comprer perigloral D&3a|  or K] B - 5] AT W0 % T5R ZET] EORTT g
Prutorm Tech Co L. popripment
1.85)
Foeijing LSZC lovcstmmons Co Jimeesing T T . B - g FE D NI 17,707 A2
ud 0520
IDosgmuan Likus Maiwell  [Manufciure and frading of /I WP . - - 7AIG]  0W % (] EX3] [T P
[Tech Go., Ld l-ompeeet peripheral peodicts
Iijing HDZX Tecbaology _[Trading of computes perighers] WIE[ 6o - - - | NN % 0358 1835 60912 .
[Ca 1d loquipment
b smncr Techrnotogy ITeading of computcr pesipheral Famfomy - - - - (o5 10000 % 143 a.ust 6T P
Co.ld @ i
Technology)
Mate 1:  The method of investment is divided into the fallawing four catcporics:
(1) Remitiance from third-region companies 10 invest in Mainland China.
(2}  Tiwough the establishment of third-region comp then i g in Mainfand China.
(3 Through transferring the investment t¢ third-region exisiing comp then investing in Mainland Chrina.
(4}  Othermethods.

a.
b.

Investing in Mainland China through Beijing L. & S Lancom Platform of Technology Co., Led.
tvesting in Mainland China through Beijing LSZC Tovesiment Co., Ltd.
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Note2:  The investment income (Josses) were recopnized under the equity method and based on the financial statements audited by the auditor of the
Company.
Note 3:  Aforementioned amounts have been eliminated upon consolidated financial statements.
(i) Limitation on investment in Mainland China:
Accumulated Investment (amount) | Maximum investment
investment amount approved by amount set by
Company name remitted from Taiwan Investment Investment

to Mainland China at | Commission, Ministry | Commission, Ministry

" the end of the period | of Economic Affairs | of Economic Affairs
The Company 75,982 161,928 -

(Note 1)

Note 1: The Company was certified as an operations center by the Industrial Development
Bureau, Ministry of Economic Affairs, in approval letter No. 10720420590, and the
certification is valid from 2018 to 2021. The Company has no limitation on
investment in Mainland China during the abovementioned period.

(iii) Significant transactions with investees in Mainland China:

Please refer to “Information on significant transactions” and “ Business relationships and
significant intercompany transaction” for the indirect and direct business transactions in China.
All transactions were eliminated upon consolidation.

(14) Segment information

(a)

(b)

General information

The Group is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and selling of internet and communication
equipments. Management reviews the Company’ s overall performance regularly to evaluate the
performance of each segment and alfocate its resources accordingly. As the production procedure is
highly similar, the Group is identified as a sole operating segment. ’

Geographic information

In presenting information on the basis of geography, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers and segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets,

Geographic information

Revenue from external customers:

United States
China
Israel

" Canada
Korea
Other countries
Total

2018 2017
$ 2,927,775 2,662,472
1,775,958 1,643,253
677,386 700,640
588,374 423,604
189,067 2,524
1,302,220 1,002.006
S 7.460,780 6,434,499
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December 31, December 31,

Geographical information 2018 2017
Non-current assets:
Taiwan 3 968,523 981,280
United States ' 78,561 71,296
China 340,000 81,624
Canada 2.514 3.076
Total $ 1,389.598 1,137,276

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and other assets. They
do not include financial instruments, deferred income tax assets and refundable deposit.

Information about major customers

2018 2017
Customer A S 953,501 1,100,706




